BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
March 16, 200S
Helene Hall, Hana
CONVENE:

6:02 p.m.

PRESENT:

Councilmember Dain P. Kane, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member
Council member Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Member
Council member Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Member

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson, Member

STAFF:

Lance T. Taguchi, Legislative Analyst
Yvette Bantilan, Substitute Committee Secretary
Renee Keala Lono, Council Aide, Hana Council Office

ADMIN.:

Edward S. Kushi Jr., Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel

OTHERS:

Jean Mardfin, Hana Lani Senior Citizens Club
Ward Mardfin, Hana Cultural Center
Teya Penniman, Maui Invasive Species Committee
Daryl Aquino, Crew Member, Maui Invasive Species Committee
Daryl Tau-A, Crew Member, Maui Invasive Species Committee
Uilani Tehiva
Poerava Tehiva, Maui Economic Opportunity (MEO) Youth Bank
Teua Tehiva, MEO Youth Bank
Hatota Tehiva, MEO Youth Bank
Kanani Kahalehoe, MEO
Alex Michailidis, East Maui Watershed Partnership
John Blumer-Buell
Carl Lindquist
Russell Kaho 'okele
Kathleen Street, Hale Hulu Mamo
Pomai Konohia, Hui No Ke Ola Pono
Ray Henderson, Ohana Makamae Inc.
Malia Henderson, Hale Hulu Mamo
Barry Chang, Board of Director Hana Canoe Club, and Board of Director
Hana Soccer Club

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 16, 2005 (Han a)

Rick Rutiz, Maka Hana Ka 'Iki
Tyris Kahalehoe, Hana Youth Center
Kaiza Lecker, Hana Youth Center
Towney Kalama, Hana Youth Center
Keoki Kalani, Hana Youth Center
Melissa Chimera, The Nature Conservancy
Paulo Burns, Keiki Hana Canoe Club
Jonnie Oliveira, MEO
Mary Kuulei Haina, Hale Hulu Mamo and Poanimai Park
Jackie Kahula, Hale Hulu Mamo
Samuel Kalalau III
Jackie Krause
Daisy Lind
Caroline Smith
Shirley Kahula
Additional attendees (35)

ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee for March 16, 2005 here in the Helene Hall, Hana, Maui. Good evening,
Hana. Thank you for having us this evening, and we really appreciate you all being here.
At this time I'd like to yield the floor to Councilmember Robert Carroll who can provide
us with the introductions of the Members that are present for tonight's meeting.
Councilmember Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Short cord. Thank you everyone for coming, and I'd like to
introduce our Members now. And, of course, we have Dain Kane, who is the Chair of
our Budget Committee. Next to him, we have--and he represents the Wailuku area. Next
to him we have Mike Molina, Haiku; and next to him we have Michelle Anderson, who
represents South Maui, the Kihei area. On Mr. Kane's other side, we have Riki Hokama,
who is our Council Chair, and, of course, he represents Lanai. Next to him we have
Charmaine Tavares, born and raised Hana girl for at least a short while of time, who
represents the Upcountry area. And then we have Joe Pontanilla, who represents
Kahului; and Danny Mateo, who represents the island of Molokai.
CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Member Carroll.
And, for the record, Councilmember
Jo Anne Johnson is excused, and she does send the people of Hana her aloha. Tonight,
ladies and gentlemen, we're going to be providing you with an opportunity to present us
your comments on the Mayor's proposed budget for the Fiscal Year 2006. Just a few
ground rules. If you do have a cell phone that catches in Hana--and a lot of us don't--if
you can please turn it to the off or silent mode. That way we won't get any unnecessary
distractions. We'll provide you with a total of four minutes to testify. At three minutes,
we'll let you know that you're at three minutes so that way you can start wrapping up
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your comments. Please state your name for the record. And if you do represent an
organization, we are recording so you need to speak into the mike. And we ask you that
you address the body here. And, again, it's very important that you state your name.
Just as a note before we start, we have a few folks that did sign up, crew members. So,
crew members, we going need you to give us your name, too, bumbye [sic], so after that,
if you can just go sign your name on the side over here.
So with that being said, we'll go ahead and introduce our first person signed up to testify.
And, by the way, final note, once you finish, let us know you pau, and then if you could
just hang out just for a moment because there may be questions of the body on your
testimony. So once we ask questions, if nobody has questions, then you can take your
seat again.
First person to testify this evening, Jean Marafin [sic]. Jean. And if I do mispronounce
anybody's name, forgive me. And following Jean will be Ward Mardfin. And that's says
Mardfin, thank you.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. MARDFIN: Yeah. Good evening, Council Members and the Budget Committee. My
name is Jean Mardfin. I am a resident of Hana, and I am a member of the Hana Lani
Senior Citizens Club. I thought I would just give you some idea of how we use your, the
MEO services.
I represent the Club at the Maui County Senior Citizens Planning and Coordinating
Council in Kahului, and I'm able to attend these monthly meetings because of the van
service from Hana.
Secondly, I know that our members in our Club, some of 'em who don't drive anymore,
can attend our meetings because MEO will pick them up at home and bring them to the
meeting and take them home afterwards.
Thirdly, MEO provides transportation to our, for our group to places like the Ulupalakua
Thing and that's coming up in April. And that's just one of an example of the excursions
that we take. So I ask that you continue to fund all of the MEO programs. It's very, very
helpful to senior citizens in Hana. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mardfin. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Next to testify is Ward Mardfin. Mr. Mardfin will be followed by I think it's
Teya Penniman.
MR. MARDFIN: Aloha, Council Members, Budget Committee Members. My name is
Ward Mardfin. I am the, I'm speaking today in my capacity as Treasurer for the Hana
Cultural Center, and I'd like to, first of all, thank you very, very much for the support
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we've been getting through the Housing and Human Concerns Department block grants.
This year we have two. We have, one is for sort of kokua grant for general operating
sorts of things. It really is crucial for allowing us to continue with our general level of
services.
The second is a special Kapuna [sic] Tell Me a Story grant that we've been doing to
videotape kapuna [sic] in Hana to get the, basically to do an oral history project where we
have their memories on tape, videoed [sic] for posterity for the children of Hana, for
possibly for visitors and for the entire island of Maui, actually.
First I want to thank you very much for that. We're also going to be trying to get some
additional, when this terminates, get some follow on funds, and we appreciate your
consideration of that. This is, is an organization which we have a museum. We have, we
operate the courthouse. We have a kauhale traditional hale building program, where we
help the students learn about building traditional hales, and we really appreciate all the
help that you've given us. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mardfin. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next is Teya Penniman. Following Ms. Penniman is one of our crew
members.
MS. PENNIMAN: Actually seval [sic], several of our crew members.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. PENNIMAN: Aloha, Chair Kane and Members of the Budget Committee. Thank you for
coming out to Hana for this important issue. I want to thank you for your past support
and to urge you to support the items that are in the budget to support invasive species
work. There are several items that support the work of the Maui Invasive Species
Committee under both the Department of Water Supply budget and also the Office of
Economic Development, under the Mayor's grant program. Also I urge you to support
line items for watershed protection.
You will probably see me or some of the rest of our staff at some of the other meetings,
and so I don't want to talk too much tonight. What I would like to do is just to introduce
you to the members of our crew. These are the people who are working every day out
doing the important work of controlling Miconia. At this point, I'd like to ask them to
stand.
CHAIR KANE: Mahalo.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you. They are what I consider to be the heroes of the forest. I am
beyond proud of the work that they do. Many of them have been doing, working
Miconia, controlling Miconia for years and will be doing so, I hope, for the years to
come. It's an issue that we cannot afford to stop working on. We need your continued
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support, which has helped us leverage dollars from State and Federal funds, making it
possible to continue to fight this battle.
Thank you for your continued support, and I would like to ask several of the crew
members to come up, introduce themselves, let you know where they live and how long
they've been working on Miconia. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Penniman before we have the
crew members come up? Seeing none, thank you very much. Next we have signed up to
testify, I believe we have two crew members that would like to come forward to say a
few words. And if you can, please state your name for the record, and I'll fill it in for
you.
MR. AQUINO: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, Council Members. My name is Daryl Aquino. I
work with MISC on the Miconia, and I live in Keanae. I started this project as a
volunteer because I didn't know what Miconia was when I retired from the Air Force.
And I got to a temporary hire. Now I'm permanent hire. Mr. Chairman, you came out
couple times to our site to visit, so you know what is the threat to our watershed,
especially in Hana. Hana is the most, we get most of our water going to the other side, so
you know the impact it is for Miconia.
For me, I live in Keanae. A lot of my friends hunt in there, so we try to control the
Miconia, what we see. And our team go down in the, in Keanae, where we get areas that
we need the whole team. So we're trying to keep everything from the outside, work
towards the core, and the core is right above Waikiu(?).
So, like I said, I've been working for eight years, and I hope you guys still support our
project. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Aquino. Members, any questions for Mr. Aquino? Hearing
none, thank you very much. And I, I think we have another crew member signed up.
Please come forward.
MR. TAU-A: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, County Council. My name is Daryl Tau-A. Come
from the district of Keanae, me, mysel..., my dad and my granddad. I like to thank you
guys for the support for Miconia. I start Miconia back four years ago, on emergency hire,
EW(?) Program, that lasted for a while, then it finished. Then I got re-hired permanent
this time with Maui Invasive Species Committee.
Once again, what I see what you guys do for us is keeping the aina clean, free of
Miconia, because that can do pretty much damage here in our rainforest. And also it does
help create jobs. Help me get a job home in here and then move back, relocated back in
Keanae from town. And hopefully can get, appropriate more funding so can hire more
people from this area.
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To, like they said, as one Hawaiian, myself, keeping the aina clean would be very
important for the people of Hawaii and Hawaiians here . .. No Hawaiians, no aloha,
yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tau-A. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Next to testify, we have Uilani Tehiva, followed by Hatota Tehiva.
MS. TEHIVA: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Uilani Tehiva. I'm from Hana, born and
raised. I'd like to speak on behalf of many agency, but I'd like to start with Ohana
Makamae, who I've worked with for almost five years now. And when Ohana Makamae
first started, a lot of the things that they planned for the agency was only a thought. And
because of the funds that you folks have provided Ohana Makamae, it has become a
reality, and we'd like to thank you for your support for the programs that we have, that is
very beneficial to the community and for those that are in need in our community and that
we are able to help.
Also, I'd like to recognize the MEO Youth Bank, who, my first daughter is presently in
the Program, and she loves it very much. It has helped her to become a leader, and,
which I have, I have seen grown and blossomed into a leader that she's trying to progress
and find herself. And soon my other daughter will be a member or a participant of the
Program this summer. So I look forward for all of my children, all of my five children to
be in the Program because I see how much benefit it has, you know, contributed to the
youths of Hana.
Next is the Hana Youth Center. My children use Hana Youth Center a lot, as far as after
school homework, activities that they provide, field trips. And it, it gives the youth here
in Hana a place to go, a place to hang out with their friends, a safe place, and also the
staff and the facilities that they have there is very, very good for the youths, too, as well.
Also, I'd like to recognize the Hale Hulu Mamo, who works very well with our kupunas,
and I hope that when my time comes, I hope not soon, but I'd like to, I'd like to have it
there for, maybe not for me, but for my mom and, you know, my aunties, uncles. But
programs there are very, very good, and the staff there I can say are very helpful.
And also the MEO transportation who had, that I've seen that come in and out of Hana
almost every day. I'm not sure what the times are, but I see them transporting our
community members out for appointments or shopping or whatever things they need to
attend.
And last, I'd like to mention--this is not regarding any organization but it has to do with
the ... Northfolk [sic] pines. I live next to Hasegawa, where Hasegawa, old store
Hasegawa used to be where the pine trees go down towards Hamoa. And I live on that
house that is surrounded by pine trees that are almost 100 feet tall. And I watch the news
last night and how a girl got critically injured, and so my concern is if there is anyone that
can help with inspecting the trees because we've noticed that trees around our house,
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along the highway has big holes and it looks like termite eaten. So if there is any way
that that matter could be resolved or checked on, I really appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tehiva. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next we have Hatota Tehiva, with Poerava and Tehiva [sic] Tehiva, as well
as, yeah, Poerava, Teua. Please come.
MR. TEHIV A: I will let them speak first, and then-MS. TEHIVA: Good evening, Council, Council Members. My name is Poerava Tehiva, and I'd
like to talk on behalf of the MEO Youth Bank tonight. I would, first of all, like to thank
you folks for supporting us for it helped teenagers like myself to look forward to
activities that helps us in life and job skills that we can plan for in our futures. This
program has many activities that in fact helps teenagers, of course like myself, to keep
our minds positive and off of negative activities, such as drugs and gang crews and stuff
like that.
This program has helped a lot of teenagers to keep their minds straight on what they
should put their life on, what they should look forward to instead of just short-term goals.
A lot of kids I see around here, they have ... well, not so many goals that they can look
forward to. It's only like go to the weekend, go drink. But this is the kind of program
that keeps their mind off of it and helps them look forward to more future potentials that
helps them see in their life and have them do better things with what they can do in Hana.
And I know that these kids have a lot of energy to do what they want to do because I have
watched myself go from being a person who had very little hope and not so much
activities to attend. But I have watched a lot of youth from the past come to this program
and see how their vocabulary have changed into positive ones that encourage others
much younger than them to do things that are right, not so much wrong.
My cousin, however, has done many things that were not so very pleasant, and he helps
me, from this program, to do choices that he wouldn't want me to do, such as like drugs
or gang or anything like that. And I thank you, once again, for your time and for
supporting this program and for helping teenagers to make a better life.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tehiva. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson. And you have
the microphone right there, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just wanted ... wanted to compliment you on your
well-spoken speech said extemporaneously. This Program, obviously, has helped you
and you're a really fine example for people to follow. I don't know how old you are, but
you're very well spoken to speak without a written speech.
MS. TEHIV A: Fourteen. Just--.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Fourteen, well done.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Teua, come.
MS. TEHIV A: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Teua Tehiva. I would like to thank you
for supporting the MEO Youth Bank. I just applied to be a member of the MEO Youth
Bank. My sister Poerava is in the Program, and I wish to be a part of it this summer. I
have seen many activities that helps me, helps the youth learn about life and many things.
I also want to thank you for supporting the Hana Youth Center, which helps me with my
homework and provides field trips and activities that help me learn and our children that
are over here. Again, please support these two programs of us, the youths of Hana.
Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, questions? Hearing none, Ms. Tehiva, thank you.
MR. TEHIV A: County Members, aloha. My name is Hatota Tehiva, and I represent the MEO
Youth Bank here in Hana. And my title in MEO, I'm a Job Coach. I do life skills and
job skills to, to help the kids to focus for their future. And thank you for the MEO, for
the training that I have received in order for me to pass on to the new generation.
This, few months ago, I have lot of children, lot of teenage that applied to MEO Program,
and I have to close the door because it's limited to me. And because of our bus
transportation is only limited to the kids, and if too many kids come, I cannot go to
Kahului and then come back, pick up the rest and go back. So I have to limit it for some
of the kids. But, yeah, few kid that apply for this summer and for those being in the
Program before, they graduating and they having, they move on. And I seen them change
their life. And thank you for supporting the Program.
And here in Hana is not only what we do with the youth, but Youth Bank collaborate
with different organizations. Myself, I do Emergency Preparedness. In case something
happen here like tsunami, I do presentations at the Youth Center to help the people and
especially to the youth to make them understand what are the troubles of that happen and
what are the things that you need to do to prepare yourself when that thing happen.
So, and also we collaborate with the Youth Center, Hale Hulu Mamo, Alu Like.
Alu Like and the youth and the MEO Program, we do a __ program at the school.
Alcohol, tobacco and other drugs. So we help the kids at the school, and we need your
support to help us supporting our programs so we can help our new generations for the
future. And that's all I want to say. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tehiva. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much, and thank you for all the work you do, Mr. Tehiva. Thank you, ladies. Next
to testify, we have Kanani Kahalehoe. And following Ms. Kahalehoe, we have Alex
Michailidis.
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MS. KAHALEHOE: Good evening, Council Members and welcome to Hana. I'm an employee
of the Hana MEO. I'm the driver for Hana. Since I started working for MEO, the, our
bus transportation has been used very widely by our seniors, and we'd like to ask for your
continued support with our programs. We've also do the Youth Bank Program, where we
do the shuttle from school to the Youth Center. So the MEO, the Youth Bank and the
Hana Youth Center, we all work closely together. And, as you know, we also had a new
bus that was given to Hana and that serves our dialysis clients. And it also has a
wheelchair lift in it, which also serves our people that needs to use the wheelchair lift.
The new bus has been a blessing for our people here, and so we ask that you continue to
support our MEO Programs that we have. And we also ask that you support our Program
with the Poanimai Park, which will be used by the people of Hana, as well as our young
people who needs more space to practice. And that will be, you know, a plus for Hana.
So, again, we thank you for being here.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kahalehoe. Members, questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you for being here. Have you ever had a request to
transport any groups or individuals and not been able to transport them? And if the
answer is, you have, then what were the reasons behind it.
MS. KAHALEHOE: Yes, we have been asked to transport. There are some that does not have
vehicles and who doesn't, you know, are not able to drive. So we are asked to transport
them out and back for medical purposes and if they need to do shopping.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: No, I mean is people that have asked you to transport them
and you cannot.
MS. KAHALEHOE: We've had some situations where we were asked to transport, but there are
times when we are not able to transport because we have set programs and set times that
we have to pick people up, and if we're not able to do it, then, you know, we do explain
to them our reasons for not being able to transport them. But we try to accommodate
them if possible.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions, Members? Hearing none, Ms. Kahalehoe,
thank you. Next to testify is Alex Michailidis, and following Mr. Michailidis, we have
John Blumer-Buell.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Aloha, Mr. Chairman, Budget and Finance Committee Members.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. MICHAILIDIS: All right ... I'm not going to strain my neck now.
CHAIR KANE: Posture, posture.
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MR. MICHAILIDIS: My name is Alex Michailidis, and I'm the Watershed Managing
Coordinator for the East Maui Watershed Partnership Project with the University of
Hawaii. I first off want to extend sincere mahalos to the Members of the County Council
and the Mayor for funding the Mayor's Office of Economic Development, has provided
to watershed partnership projects in Maui nui over the past three years. The County's
financial support enable such projects to receive additional funding from State and
Federal sources. Over the past three years, Maui County's funding to East Maui's project
alone has enabled us to bring in over a million dollars, an amount that's needed with an
operating budget that exceeds a half a million dollars a year. So County money does go a
long, long way.
During this past year, we continued our Resource Management project in the field, in the
classrooms, and in our island's community. Just this past fall we sponsored an art contest
that celebrated the native flora and fauna of East Maui that traveled from Makawao up to
the Visitor's Center at Haleakala and then to the public library in Hana. All in attendance
were very appreciative of our effort, in particular the people of Hana. So mahalo to the
library staff here and the community for the warm welcome that we received and the
opportunity to show this exhibit to them.
I have submitted written testimony that further elaborates on some of the project's
accomplishments, but in the next couple weeks, I'm not going to bore you with my voice.
I'm going to have staff come and present and testify before you to further discuss some of
the great work that we've done this past year. ... (cough) ... Excuse me.
Our Partnership Project continues to make progress, great progress, and that's because
the partners are committed to protecting this valuable resource, project personnel are
dedicated and hard working, the members of the community support the work that we do,
and we've had your financial support. County monies greatly assist our ability to receive
match funding, so without your help and financial support, the success of all Maui nui's
watershed partnerships is jeopardized.
Therefore, I urge you to support the Mayor's and the Department of Water Supply's
allocations of funding to Watershed Partnership Projects. Mahalo for your time, your
consideration of this request, and your service to the community.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Michailidis. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify, John Blumer-Buell.
Carl Linguist [sic].

Following Mr. Blumer-Buell is

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Aloha, Council Members. First, I'd just like to add my voice of
support for MEO, the Invasive Species group, the Canoe Club, the Cultural Center, the

- 10-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 16, 2005 (Hana)

Youth Center, particularly Ohana Makamae. The two-year funding is right on. You
know, give groups that deserve, you know, give 'em two years. That's good.
I disagree with what the Mayor said today in the newspaper about the tax system and that
is, since it isn't broke, I see no reason to fix it. Well, I think, I've given you some
handouts, and I think the current tax system is hurting our community. Please read an
essay I gave you called, Does Community Have Value. It's a great essay about a great
American writer.
For my, I've only been able to look at the budget online this afternoon, so these are
preliminary things. But I will write you. It looks to me like we have 23.2 higher
valuations or assessments. The Mayor's proposing 15 percent reductions in the tax rates,
so we have an 8 percent increase for all homeowners. That doesn't make any sense to
me. I've been advocating a rainy day fund for 15 years. I'd rather be decreasing our
bond, our bond responsibilities rather than increasing them. And I compliment all of you
for being open to looking at serious tax reform. It'll be your call and a lot of people in
this community are trying to make constructive input.
Regardless of what you do, please put a line item in this budget and keep the circuit
breaker. The line item for advertisements in the newspapers and workshops in places like
Hana so people can understand what the heck it is. It's a, you know, it's a good thing.
It's our, it's the last safety net for people and yet people don't understand it. So I
encourage you, line item that information stuff.
I just want to comment on two projects. I gave you another letter from Hana Soil and
Water Conservation. Please read that. The, the wastewater system plant for Hana, I
think it's a half a million. Totally support it. It was in the community plan 13 years ago.
It's way overdue. So thank you for that.
Secondly, I testified last year against the fire station in Kipahulu. It's a $3.5 million
project with about $800,000 the year after that. It's unnecessary. It's a Federal problem
out there. It's not even the County that's creating the problems. The homeowners that
bought out there in the early '70s, and I saw the agreements, bought with an agreement
that they were substandard roads, substandard water, substandard subdivisions. So
there's no reason to put that in.
And I want to finish with, we don't need it in Kipahulu, but I want to
say ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... I've been watching that one. If it's been taken out of the
budget, I'm supporting a new fire station for Molokai. We're all in the same County.
We're all responsible to each other, and I think, in this case, Molokai deserves a fire
station at this point, rather than one in Kipahulu. And I will be happy to defend the, my
opposition to Kipahulu. So mahalo. I will write you, and I know it's a long process and
you've got tough decisions, but mahalo.
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CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
Any questions for the testifier?
Mr. Blumer-Buell, if you can, please, come forward. Question, Mr. Pontanilla, followed
by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
breaker.

Thank you, John.

You mentioned about the circuit

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Was that thing ever presented to the Hana community
during the Finance Department visitation to different areas? Last year?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Last year? You know, I'm not sure if it's been presented, and so
whatever the record shows is, I don't doubt that. But I do know that in talking with a lot
of people for a number of years, that people don't really understand that circuit breaker
has to do with taxes. They think it has to do with their electric board for turning off their
electricity. They need the instruction, and I think workshops are really worthwhile.
These are, I mean, this is why I gave you the article about communities. This is going to
help people that need it the most, and so just a little bit of money for workshops. I think,
perhaps, do it with a, through an organization like Ohana Makamae, which is trying to
preserve families. That's what the whole tax issue is to me. It's about preserving
families, so mahalo for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. And we'll follow up on that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. John, you mentioned the Kipahulu fire station
is really a Federal issue. Could you explain that a little more?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The ... yes. I say that because there is enormous amount of visitors in
Kipahulu, over a thousand a day. Don Reeser has the figures. So it's really half a million
or more per year. So the, the emergency services that are needed out there are really
being created by the Federal government. The Federal government is, is, is charging
money to get in the National park. They have lots of money right now. And I don't think
the fire department, they, we need a fire department for homes that don't, for a place
where it doesn't even have a municipal water system at this point. And I just can't
possibly justify the expense of that. The people out there bought substandard. Those
agreements are on file with the titles. It started in '74, '75. I read those agreements, and
people bought in Kipahulu because they love the fact that it was substandard. So I don't
see the purpose.
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I will say something good about the Hana Fire Department in Hana and that is they
provide some important emergency service. Not just fire. I mean, they're our, they're
emergency services and lifeguards. They have a back-up capacity in Hana, which I
support. If that's needed in Kipahulu, it ought to be the Federal government's kuleana,
and they have the money.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you. Just one other thing.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You mentioned that you gave us a letter about Soil and
Water Conservation.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The ... I only had-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't see it in the packet-MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Okay, I only ... I'm sorry, I only had six of those. I had nine of the
rest. Please share it. That, that was the letter from the Hana Soil and Water Conservation
Board supporting--this is the letter in September--the wastewater system and the master
plan for Hana. So you did that without, that got in the budget.
The other thing we're supporting, which is in the community plan is a municipal water
system for Upper Nahiku. That was in the community plan 13 years ago. It's never been
done, and yet we have a recently presented to the community master plan for the Hana
water system from Keanae-Wailua Nui to Kipahulu. Lower Nahi ... , I mean, Upper
Nahiku is left out completely, and they shouldn't be. And that's why there's a
controversy about the pipeline right now, so I'll be happy to supply more information if
you'd like, but there's a lot of support for the Upper Nahiku municipal water system. It
was in the community plan in '93, and we're building all these redundancies into the
system with this proposal, but no, no primary water for people in Upper Nahiku. There's
a lot of farms now. There's over 100 people, and I'll bet you've talked to Skippy _ _ .
When there's a drought, he's, he's screaming and hollering because his ti plants are
wilting there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you very much. Next is
Mr. Carl Linguist [sic]. Lindquist, excuse me. Followed by Russell Kaho 'okele.
MR. LINDQUIST: Good evening, Council Members, and thank you for coming to Hana. We
appreciate your taking the time to come out to visit with us. I'm testifying on behalf of
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Hale Hulu Mamo, and instead of offering my own testimony, I'm going to read that of a
long-term Hana resident, Patty Eason, whose dad is one of their clients at Hale Hulu
Mamo.
"Hale Hulu Mamo has been a Godsend for me since my 97 year old father moved to
Hana in August of 2002. He has the opportunity to meet other seniors and enjoy the
outings that the staff plans. All the services that are offered are so needed and immensely
appreciated by my Dad. The massage therapy, water aerobics, hair cuts, manicures and
healthy food program has certainly enhanced his quality of life. The staff at Hale Hulu
Mamo is caring and responsible. They take an interest in each senior in the Program.
My father feels so comfortable with them. They are like an extended family. He loves
all the attention he receives, and he loves sharing his memories of the past with them, and
I know they are cerely [sic], sincerely interested in hearing his stories. If there were no
Hale Hulu Mamo, I would not be able to work and have the peace of mind that my Father
is getting good care. Without Hale Hulu Mamo, my Father would be left at home alone
while I'm at work, and this would be far from an ideal situation. I would worry that he
would cook and leave the stove on--this is something that has happened before. He's in
basic good health and suffers from arthritis. His gait is slow and he walks with a cane,
but he has a good time whenever he goes to the senior citizens, as he calls it. It is such a
big part of his life and mine Hale Hulu Mamo offers the much-needed help that seniors
and the caregivers rely on. I implore you to continue to fund this worthwhile Program.
Our community deserves to have services which are readily available in other parts of our
island." Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Linguist [sic]. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Hearing none, thank you very much. Russell Kaho 'okele, followed by Kathleen Sh ... ,
excuse me, Street, I believe.
MR. KAHO'OKELE: Thank you, Chairman Kane and fellow Council Members. My name is
Russell Kaho 'okele, and I'm coming to you this evening is two-fold. One as the
President of
Hana and another as a concerned employee of Hotel Hana Maui.
First I'd just like to say as the President, I'd like to thank you for your past support of our
organization. We're the one responsible for the Hawaiian hales on the side of the
highway, along with many talented people in our community who had help us make it a
reality. And I hope I can count on your support in the future also.
Secondly, as a employee of Hotel Hana Maui, the owners of the Hotel had put a lot of
money into this community and has helped this community tremendously.
Unfortunately, they're telling us that they're falling on hard times, which is the case with
every businessman, and I'm not sure how this Council can help, but it's my
understanding that there's a certain amount of funds that goes to the Maui Visitors'
Bureau, which I'd like to support that economic development program with the hopes
that somehow it can be helped to take care of our tourists who come here to Hana or to
help our owners of the Hotel keep our business going because the Hotel, Hotel Hana
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Maui, is the main employer in this end of the island. And I would hate to see that
business fold, so I just basically speaking in support of, I believe it's the economic
development program, which funds would corne out of there to the Maui Visitors'
Bureau. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kaho 'okele. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. Next, we have Kathleen Street, followed by Pomai
Konohea [sic}, Konohia, excuse me.
MS. STREET: Council Members, aloha. Thank you for corning to Hana. I speak, not as the
public health nurse and that's the position that I hold here in Hana, but I'm going to draw
on from my experience as a public health nurse and the partnerships that have been
formed and I am a part of. And I want you to know that we appreciate all of the support
that you give to our community.
I sit on the Management Committee for Hale Hulu Mamo, the Hana Senior Center, and
they provide a service for the seniors here in Hana. Not only that, but they also partner
with other agencies to help enhance the programs there. Maka Hana Ka Ike is the Hana
building project. Ohana Makamae is a family resource center. Poanimai Park provides a
needed pro ... , area for our children and we're looking to enhance that by continuing the
build-out of that park. The Parks and Recreation, I want to thank you so much for the
bathrooms in Keanae and the bathrooms at Poanimai Park, and I ask you, on behalf of the
people in Hana, I don't see anything in your Capital Improvements budget, but if you
could fix the bathrooms in Haiku because many of us stop there on our way to Kahului,
Wailuku. That would be appreciated. We need lights, especially when it's dark.
Also, Hana Canoe Club serves a purpose in this community, and we're developing the
Hana Soccer Club. And the support that you give to the MISC Program is an example,
especially for the people on the island of Hawaii who have not been as aggressive in
controlling the Miconia that the project has done here on Maui. So thank you and I hope
you can continue to fund these programs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Street, if you can, state your name for the record. I'm sorry.
If you can say your name, please. Thank you.
MS. STREET: Kathleen Street-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Street.
MS. STREET: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very much. Pomai Konohia,
followed by ... excuse me. Ray Henderson. Ms. Konohia.
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MS. KONOHIA: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for being here. My name is
Pomai Konohia, and I'll be speaking on a few topics also so excuse me if I'm all over the
place. But, first, I'm a nurse with Hui No Ke Ola Pono, and our office is located at the
old Hana School, which is also run by the County. And thanks to Stanley Akoi and the
Parks and Recreation for the awesome job they're doing to continue to keep the, the place
safe and just open to us. So I thank you for supporting Hui No Ke Ola Pono in that.
We've been here for 11 years now, and we continue to work out of that office. And we
depend a lot on our little office space that we have at the old school.
We also have our annual health fair every January, and, again, you guys are a big sponsor
and supporter of that also. So I thank the County, once again, for, for being there and
supporting Hui No Ke Ola Pono.
Secondly, I'm also the Board President for Hana Youth Center, and, as you heard from
those before me, all the agencies here collaborate and depend on one another, such as
Hale Hulu Mamo; Maka Hana Ka Ike; Rick Rutiz, Building and Construction Program;
the Ohana Makamae, and also the Hana Youth Center. As you guys know, they have the
movies in the park once a, once a month and that's continue, continuingly [sic] to grow,
thanks to all the agencies and your support, again, for giving monies for these projects.
Also, the ... I'm also a Co-Chair on the Mo 'olea(?) Project, and, again, I thank you,
Charmaine and also Robert Carroll for, for helping us to get this up and rolling. And
that's continuingly [sic] to, we're meeting. We just met last week, and, again, if it wasn't
for the County to purchase this property, who knows, you know, what million dollar or
millionaire would have purchased this property and subdivided it and there would have
gone many historical sites and, you know, one of the last fishing grounds here in Hana.
So thank you, again, for supporting the Mo 'olea Project.
Also .. speaking of the bathrooms, I'd, like Kathleen stated earlier, yes, if you guys
could kind of beef up this bathroom, too. I don't know if you guys noticed here ... Is
that part of the County? Yeah, that's part of the County, too, if you guys can help to
make this bathroom a little bit better, that would be awesome.
The 201G process that Claudia Shay from Self-Help Housing brought up, I'm also in
support of that and hope that you guys can push that through so that families, such as
mine, who, you know, live in crowded houses with in-laws and out-laws and all the
extended families. You know how that can be. You know, no more space. You stay
banging each other every time, trying to use one bathroom. So if we can get affordable
housing for our families, our big families here in Hana, that would, you know, if you
guys could push that 201G through, Council member Danny Mateo, I would appreciate
that.
And then also yesterday or was it Monday, I noticed, I was washing my car outside of my
house and I heard this loud noise. I thought Iraq was coming and was, you know, was
going bomb us or what. And I looked up and I saw this huge plane going over. It look
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like one, heli ... , you know, helicopter. One of those big army choppers, and I noticed that
it was going to rescue. I guess it was the 911-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. KONOHIA: Three minutes? Okay. And so it was awesome to see ... I saw the pictures
the next day from Kamehameha Preschool because my daughter goes to that school. And
they took pictures of the 911 rescue going on and they had the fire chopper, the yellow
one, and then also that big air ambulance one I guess. And so if that's part of you folks'
doing, I thank you folks because I heard that that rescue was so fast, within like three
minutes or what. Here was the chopper, next the paramedics and then the firemen and so
they all were rescuing this tourist down at Kaihalulu. And they were able to do that
safely, right in the big ballpark, but I wish, you know, these tourists who come here and
use up all of our safety personnel, if they would put some money into all of this because,
as you guys know, a lot of these services are being used for the tourists when they drown
and whatnot. But, you know, the locals also but thank you guys for ... if you guys can
continue this chopper coming in for rescue services like this, great. I think that's it.
Sorry. Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Konohia. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much.
MS. KONOHIA: Oh, yeah, wait. Yeah, there was one last thing. I wanted to thank this MISC
guys because ... I don't know. I guess you guys went up and saw how bad the Miconia
is, and, whoa, I give these guys credit. If you guys can continue to support what all of
this locals are doing is not easy. Hard work, so hats off to you folks, the MISC. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Konohia. Mr. Ray Henderson, followed by Malia Henderson.
MR. HENDERSON: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for coming. Hope you enjoyed your
dinner. I'm Ray Henderson, Executive Director for Ohana Makamae. We're a family
resource center here in town. We're going to be celebrating our sixth year anniversary in
July. Wanted to thank you for your support. The County has been a partner with Ohana
Makamae since its inception. You represent about a quarter of our budget. This is the
first year ... fifth year that we've been able to leverage those dollars with your support,
and we actually partnered with Aloha House and Child and Family Service to offer drug
court, in-patient--it should be out-patient--intensive treatment here in Hana. So it's a nice
partnership that we've created because of your funding.
Also because of your funding, we're able to start a counseling program at school. So the
Alu Like Y APP Program and Hana Youth Bank do prevention. We do the actual
counseling. It's been a nice partnership there. Wanted to thank you for supporting all
these organizations that have gotten up already and talked, that people have talked about.
The Hale Hulu Mamo; the Hana Youth Center; Mana [sic], Maka Hana Ka Ike, which
I'm a board member of; MEO Youth Bank. The transportation has been a wonderful
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bonus from MEO. It's really nice to see that we've had action on what, the request that
was last year to have bus services expanded and that's been a very nice bonus.
I also would like to add my comments to help push along the process with Poanimai
Park. It's very, very difficult to have more than four or five cars parked at the park
parking lot right now. And it's very dangerous. You can only get out on the roadside.
And so to have that extra park area would be nice to expand parking and also possible,
the playground project that we've talked about. Thank you for your support of the Hana
Summerfest, which all these agencies that have talked thus far, we get together and try
and fundraise for our agencies once a year. And through the Economic Development
side of the Mayor's Office, we've been able to, you know, get that going, and I really
appreciate that support.
The Parks Department, awesome. Thank you for su ... , you know, the good staff that you
have there, and also I'd like to add my two cents to please help with affordable housing.
I wasn't able to be at the meeting earlier but that is definitely an issue here in Hana, to
have affordable housing for our families. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Henderson. Members, questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Poanimai Park expansion that you're talking about-MR. HENDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: --was the Mayor made aware of that expansion request
during his budget review period?
MR. HENDERSON: You know, I'm not actually sure if the Mayor was ... maybe Bob Carroll
has the answer to that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
questions now.

I can ask him later.

We don't have to ask each other

MR. HENDERSON: I think so, though. I think that, you know, a lot of people are aware of that.
The issue was the land, actually, the transfer of land title because it was a gift from the
Hana Ranch-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right, okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members?
Mr. Henderson. Malia Henderson, followed by Barry Chang.

Thank you very much,

MS. HENDERSON: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Malia Henderson, and I'm here to
thank you on behalf of Hale Hulu Mamo, which is our senior center. We fall under Maui
Adult Day Care Center, which our funding goes through, and I'm just grateful that you
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folks continually support our senior program here. It's a vital program for many of our
kupuna. Many don't have places that they can leave their kupuna when they go to work,
and so Hale Hulu Mamo provides that haven for them to be able to come to. We help fill
a lot of the needs for our kupuna in regards to their social, creative, physical and
sometimes even emotional needs and that is wonderful.
We are able to collaborate with a lot of different agencies. One which has that cute
Executive Director there, Ohana Makamae. We're really grateful to be able to have that
family resource center available here in Hana. They do a lot, and a lot of great things
have been happening because of Ohana Makamae in regards to helping change a lot of
community members for betterment.
And we're grateful to be able to have our Youth Center, which is located right next door
to us. That Youth Center I think it's one of the best looking ones because our kids with
Maka Hana Ka Ike actually renovated that Youth Center, and we get to collaborate with
them. They are absolutely wonderful, and we enjoy working with them. And they're
always very supportive, and so thank you so much for your support with them.
Another one that I spoke on behalf of is Maka Hana Ka Ike. I don't know how much
funding they receive from you, but if, if it's just a little, I would really urge you to look at
putting a little bit more funding their way. Maka Hana Ka Ike fills a lot of needs in our
community. I'm not sure if you've been able to go to our school. They've done a lot of
buildings that provides classrooms. One for Ohana Makamae where they just are now
recently working on for a drug, for one of the counselors to be able to meet with the
students who have problems with drugs there. They build homes for our kupuna here and
have assisted in identifying kupuna in need that maybe have so many family members
living in one home, and they're so crunched that this one room will make a big difference
for them to be able to live comfortably. Whenever we've needed any type of renovating
when it's come to our closet space, Maka Hana Ka Ike is always who we end up thinking
of and calling. And it's so wonderful to see these students learning such great building
techniques and having this in their high school so that when they graduate, they'll be able
to take this trade on with them in, in, in life It's something that they'll always have. And
so I urge you to continue to support them. If not, if you have any extra money to send it
their way.
I'm also speaking on behalf of our MEO. I don't know what many of our kupuna would
do without our MEO services. It's been wonderful to be able to have our dialysis
transportation now for people who are on dialysis, which takes them out three times a
week. And I think, yes, Charmaine, they do turn away people because I have heard of
people who, if they're not, they, they're very limited as to how many people they can
take out each trip. And if somebody, people have to call in advance to make sure that
they can get on that bus when it goes out to the other side. And if they don't have an
opening, then they can't go out. So this limits many of our kupuna when it comes to
doctors needs and they can't, they don't have a car, it limits them. And so please
continue to support them and the Youth Bank Program.
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And I also would like to speak on behalf of our affordable housing. It's something that's
very needed here in Hana. So many families live together, and I would love to see
something move in regards to that area. And also I support our Hana Canoe Club. It's
wonderful for Hana to have these programs. The Canoe Club, our Poanimai Park. We
need these programs for our kids, and so please continue to support them. And thank you
so much for your time. Have a great evening.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Henderson. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Next is Mr. Barry Chang, following Mr. Chang is Rick Rutiz.
MR. CHANG: Aloha, Council Members, my name is Barry Chang Kanakaole, Hana District.
I'm here twofold, for Hana Canoe Club and our Hana Soccer Club, and we would like to
thank you for funding our keiki program. And, as you know, out in Hana, everything is
transportation for participation. And we thank you for participation through MEO
program for our Canoe Club, and thank you for the Parks Department, which provides
our canoe. And, hopefully, future more canoes, which we have now totaling of seven.
And, as we know, people that come to Hana Bay, first thing they see is our canoes, and
we try to keep a good conditions and picture-taking opportunities for them so that is a big
mahalo to our County Council for providing grants for our keikis, which is the main and
sole purpose of our Canoe Club.
Also I speak in behalf of our Hana Can ... , Hana Soccer Club, which is for our keikis also.
And, as you know, sports helps their confidence in future civic and economical
development. So, in that sense, we have no funding for transportation for our kids. The
younger kids, we have great parent participation for transportation. Our older kids, which
is range from sixth grade to eighth grade, our parents have been there for many years, so
they really cannot spend a lot of time and energy and transportation costs for games,
which consist 12 weeks out of a year. So we've decided we're going to try and establish
our own region, which will also help in having less transportation costs out to the other
side and in doing our own region, we will try to enhance teams from the outside to come
in, which will also create more funding from our national and regional association. And
what we're asking is that when we do have to travel outside, that we can have some MEO
transportation to help our kids to reach the games, which our, lot of our kids have had lot
of success and they get into the tournaments but then we can't get 'em out there. So we
hope that in the future, whether it's 2005, 2006 and further, we can get some funding for
some transportation.
And, again, thank you for your time and mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chang Kanakaole. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank
you very much. Next to testify is Rick Rutiz.
MR. RUTIZ: Good evening. Thank you very much for coming in tonight. I'd just like to share
a little story with you about my experiences with Maka Hana Ka Ike. This year we've
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done a little bit different work than we have in the past. In the past, it's been mostly with
the school, and we built within the school and the kids who a lot of them are not real
comfortable in a classroom setting and for many years, they're, they may be feeling less
than successful, less than awesome. And they get in there and they put a last coat of
varnish on a koa cabinet, and they really look at themselves differently.
So this year, what we've been doing is we've gone more out in the community, and
we've been able to build for kupuna, build for their kupuna, helping the neighborhoods.
And what I'm seeing that really, for me, excites me a lot is the feelings that the kids get
when they walk into Hasegawa's and we're going home after a day's work and I see one
of the kids get two slaps on the shoulder from, from parents, from uncles, aunties, from
anyone, boy, that was awesome work you did for Aunty Jo. And watching them,
watching their expressions, watching them what they feel when they get this and hoping
that they become addicted to this feeling of kokua, of being able to help people and when
Saturday rolls along that their choice will be to go with a bunch of people and help
someone do something instead of pound a case of beer or smoke ice. And it's a chicken
skin feeling that I get when I see what's going on in them after getting those compliments
and after feeling what it is to, to be valued in their community and their society. So thank
you for your funding and helping us keep this program alive.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Rutiz. Members, questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
thank you very much for your testimony. Next to testify is, I think we have Kaiza
Lecker, Tyris Kahalehoe, and Towney Kalama with the Hana Youth
Center ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
MS. KAHALEHOE: '" Aloha, my name is Tyris Kahalehoe. Thank you for coming to Hana
today. I am a member of Hana Youth Center. I go to the Hana Youth Center almost
every day with my, with a MEO bus right after school. I like going to the Youth Center
because my friends go there, and I finish my homework. On school break, we do cool
things. We went on, we went on a field trip to the top of Haleakala and went hiking. We
saw different na ... , native plants and birds. Then we went to the aquarium and after that
we went to the movies. I can't wait until spring break, and also I like you folks to
consider our Poanimai Park playground. Thank you for your support in our community.
MS. LECKER: Good evening, my name is Kaiza Lecker, and I'm 12 years old and I'm in the
sixth grade. I'm a member of Hana Youth Center. I do my homework at the Center. I
have enjoyed using the computers at the Center, as well as playing pool with my friends.
I enjoy the, I enjoy doing the ... wait. I enjoy doing to the Center dancing, dances along
with many other friends. I won couple of prizes. During the past two years, the youth
members have got free shoes from Hana Youth Center. They were able to do this
because of the support from ... (inaudible) ... Hana Youth Center is fun and I like to go
there a lot now. Thank you for your support in our community, especially our
playground at Poanimai Park. Also for the MEO buses that take the kids out to the canoe
races.
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MS. KALAMA: Hello, my name is Towney Kalama. I want to you know that I like going to the
Hana Youth Center. I like the people who work there because they are good fun, and I
like the food and I like to play pool and ping pong there als ... , there also. Thank you for
helping them to be open for us and sport-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Supporting.
MS. KALAMA: --supporting Poanimai Park for the ... and also the MEO buses.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, girls. Hang on one second. Any questions for the, our testifiers,
Members? Hearing none, girls, thank you very much. Good job. Next to testify,
Keoki Kalani, followed by Melissa Chimera.
MR. KALANI: My brave souls. Earlier this afternoon it was, I no like. I have to go practice. I
have curfew. I shame. Why you no talk, and so I bid you aloha, Council Members, and
welcome you once again to our community ohana. My name is Keoki Kalani, and I'm
the Executive Director of Hana Youth Center.
We had a brainstorming activity, activity earlier asking the question, what do you like
about Hana Youth Center? Good place to hang out, the music, food, excursions,
homework help, movies in the park, field trips to the other side, dances. I wish I could go
on, however, we went off on a tangent and ended up talking about something else. Some
of the things that we do are collabotive [sic], collaborative efforts, and we would have not
been able to do them as well without the help of MEO youth transportation who pick up
our kids Monday through Thursday. There are, there are times ... you ask about, is there
times when they can't support a request? And there have been times where they've
called us and asked, you know, can you pick up the children because something came up,
and they need to go do this trip to the other side. And we're very fortunate that we have
the, we have a van. And so, you know, we do help out. But MEO has provided us with a
lot of relief, and we have been able to use that funding for other, other trips.
MEO Youth Bank has also provided support in life skill programming. Hale Hulu Mamo
and Ohana Makamae is where we do movies in the park and who we are fortunate
enough to collaborate with in this family strengthening program called Hana Paa. Art
barn [sic], broadens our programming in arts and Kipahulu Living Farm at Kapahu(?)
rounds out our cultural activities. The Hana Community Health Center also provides
health guidance and teen support. And we are grateful for supporting entities like Hana
Parks and Recreation. However, what is most reassuring is that there is a core supporter,
and we are most thankful to be part of the community partnership grant for youth centers.
Your on-going support of our community here in Hana is greatly appreciated. And on
behalf of Hana Youth Center, I extend my deepest mahalo nui loa.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kalani. Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you very
much. Melissa Chimera, followed by Paulo Burns.

- 22 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 16, 2005 (Hana)

MS. CHIMERA: Good morning, Council Members. My name is Melissa Chimera. I am the
new Director of the Nature Conservancy here on Maui. I'm getting, I'm looking forward
to getting to know each and everyone of you, but I'd like to first tell you a little bit about
myself. I started off here on Maui as a Resource Manager, as a forester, and I've worked
in the, in Hana mountain, in the forest above this town, and now in Waikamoi Preserve.
And I'd just like to extend my deepest support for the Maui Invasive Species Committee
for our watershed partnerships. Through your continued support, they are, it is really,
really making a difference for that one-third of the forest that remains on our mountains
that supports our beaches, our cool climate, our tourism industry, our rare and endangered
native birds. All of those resources. You folks are really doing a fantastic job. But
there's, as you know, there's a long road ahead, and we just continue to ask for your
support.
I can tell you that being in the forest, the reverse, the forest trend towards degradation of
our natural resources is reversing slowly through your support, through the building of
fences, through the removal of weeds. All of that is making a tremendous difference, so
please continue to support using credible initiatives that are essentially guaranteeing a
legacy for our children and grandchildren. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Melissa Chimera, yes.
MS. CHIMERA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE:
much.

Yes, thank you.

Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you very

MS. CHIMERA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Paulo Burns followed by lonnie Oliveira.
MR. BURNS: Aloha mai, to the Board of the Council, County Council of Maui. I'm
Paulo Burns, and I'm the coach for the Hana Canoe Club, for the keiki, the youth
program. And I've, this is my fourth year doing it, and I have an average of about 75
kids that paddle canoe, ages from 8 years old to 16 years old. And we, we teach 'em how
to train hard and how to eat right and be real prepared to paddle and to race. So it's a real
team bonding, you know, team work thing. And for us to go to a race, we have to go to
Lahaina and Kahului for all the races. We have like seven that we have to go out during
the summertime. And a lot of our parents work at the hotel. They work in weekends and
stuff and they're not able to drive all the kids out. So the last three years, you guys have
helped us with the MEO bus, have taken out about 30 kids to each race. Maybe about
half of our children who otherwise would not have had a ride or would have been very
difficult, especially the long distance that we have to travel and, you know, the busy
parents. I really want to thank you for that and hope that you guys can continue to do that
as it's, there's not a lot of programs for our youth for in the summertime. And that's
something that ... {inaudible} ... starts now and will continue on until August. And this
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year, of course, you know, August has our State canoe races in Maui this year, so we're
training extra hard to, to represent Maui well. So mahalo for all your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Burns. Members, any questions? Any chance of having a
regatta right out in this Bay?
MR. BURNS: Well, we do have one, kind of unofficial in May, May 15. We have our Alau
race, long distance, and then Sunday we have a regatta. But it's hard to do an official one
because the weather. You never know how the surf's going to be.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Burns. Thank you for your support of the Club.
Jonnie Oliveira, followed by Mary Kuulei Haina.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Hi, my name is Jonnie Oliveira, and I work for Maui Economic Opportunity.
I'm their lead driver in Hana. And what we provide for the community is three days a
week we shuttle clients out to Kahului, Central and Wailuku for medical, shopping and
the dialysis patients. Right now we shuttle three dialysis patients. And we do that three
times a week. And once a month, I shuttle Keanae kupunas to Hana for medical and
shopping. And I help out with a senior club through community service with MEO. The
club has about 50 members, and we supply them with, they have a meeting monthly. We
supply them with a guest speaker and two excursions a year and transportation to the
Senior Fair to, in Kahului and other County events held for seniors. We try to supply
transportation. And we help out with the Youth Center with transportation with their
youths from the school four days a week. And we pretty much whatever is within our
policy, we try to do whatever we can for the community members in however we can.
And just, we support the Mayor's budget for the funding for MEO and the Youth Bank
and just, we're thankful and ask you to continue supporting it. And I'm also in support of
Hale Hulu Mamo, Youth Center, Ohana Makamae, HCHC. It's hard to not support any
program because I know that their main focus is supplying some kind of program to
benefit somebody in the community. And I just think all around it's a plus, whatever
program there is for anybody in this community. And I just wanted to thank you.
CHAIR KANE: No, thank you, Ms. Oliveira. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Mary Kuulei Haina, followed by Jackie Kahula.
MS. HAINA: Aloha, Chairman Kane and Council Members. Kuulei Haina, born and raised in
Hana and also Hana's Mayor. ... (laughter) . .. I'm here in support of Hale Hulu
Mamo. When we started three years ago, we only had one member. This year we're up
to 231. And I'd like to give back thanks to Malia Henderson and Sheila Agnitsch.
And I'm also here in support of the Hana Youth Center. Keoki Kalani, who has done a
wonderful job for our children. They could be out on the street, but they're there for our
kids, and I'm happy for that. And also for our MEO. You know, I never rode MEO bus
before, and I did two weeks ago and that's the most awesome thing that could happen to
Hana. And I thank Jonnie Oliveira and Kanani Kahalehoe for that. Also to Stanley Akoi
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for our rec. center for Ha ... , the County. They've done an awesome job. Also for
Poanimai Park, who is Keala Lono who is working on that project and we need that help.
And one thing about Hule, Hale Hulu Mamo, we have an area on the side of the building
and that we'd like to have it paved. And we know only this couldn't have happened
without your support and the funding that you gave to us. And I thank you for all that.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Haina. Members, questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
mahalo.
MS. HAINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Jackie Kahula.
MS. KAHULA: Good evening, Council Members. Good evening. I'm here on behalf of the
Hana Senior Center. I think you met our two awesome Co-Directors, Malia and Sheila. I
support that Center because if you are use of that Hale Hulu Mamo, you can walk in with
problems and these two ladies can make 'em just fly out of the window when you meet
them. They're that awesome. I just here to ask you to continue to support this Senior
Center, and, of course, the Maui Adult Day Care which we come under. And since I'm
here, I'd like to also support the Hana Community Health Center. As I mentioned to one
of the Council Members here of my illness I had in nine months, and just last month I had
a major surgery. HCHC has played a big part in my recovery because saved me that long
trips back and forth to Kahului. I can ... my doctors just can call here and I follow up
from here. Save me the time of going back and forth to Kahului. And right now we got
an awesome team of doctors, nurses and support group. So I'm asking you again to
please support that Hana Community Health Center.
You had Rick Rutiz up here testifying. I think we're the only people in the State of
Hawaii get this program, I think. I don't know. Maybe I'm wrong. But they're doing an
awesome job for the elderly and the people who can't afford to have their house
renovated.
So with this I leave you. Thank you for your kind attention. Good night and God bless.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kahula. Members, questions? Hearing none. Is there anybody
else who has not testified that would like to testify? Now is your opportunity to come
forward. Please, Mr. Kalalau. And once you're finished, if you can, please sign up with
our Secretary. Thank you. If you can state your name for the record.
MR. KALALAU: My name is Samuel Kalalau. Born and raised here in Hana. Good evening,
Council Members. Thank you for coming. I just want to go and address some of the CIP
programs that we have here. As you can see, Number 1 on the list is drainage, and it's
the drainage that for the Hana baseyard drainage channel. This is why what I was talking
about drainage earlier. It's in the same area, and this is where the second phase of
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affordable houses will be going in on the mauka side of the County garage. And I think
this drainage system should be researched more so that it could handle the drainage
problem from the housing projects.
Also, John Blumer-Buell talked about the Oheo fire station. Please don't send our money
to Molokai. We could use it here in our fire station to improve our fire stations and get,
and get better equipment and stuff. Also I feel that that Oheo fire station thing should be
researched more. I also want to make aware that the Hana millennium highway, our
bridges are coming up for replacement and rehabilitation. There's been lot of
informations going around in the ... there's two bills, actually. One in the Senate and
one in the House that needs support so that we can preserve some of the, the well
designed historical bridges and stuff.
Also, I wanted to thank Charmaine and all of you for the major land purchase, Mo 'olea,
Mo 'olea Point. That was one of the big, the big issues in Hana, and we thank you guys
very much for that, for financing the whole project.
Also, I have another thing to say. There's a position that's for in Lahaina. It's for the
Historic District enforcement officer, and I would like all of you to support that position.
I think it's a very valuable position. We don't have anyone doing the kind of historical
kind of enforcement. I think it's a first step, too, that there's lot of other historical places
on Maui that in the future could maybe have another position, too.
Anyway, I thank all of you for supporting all the projects down here in Hana. Our youth
programs, our senior programs, the MEO programs, and all our other non-profit
organizations. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kalalau. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, if you can, Mr. Kalalau. Thank you very much. Is there anybody else in here this
evening? Please come forward, state your name for the record, and then, again, we'll
have you sign up right after you're done with your testimony. Thank you.
MS. KRAUSE: My name is DeeDee Krause, and I wanted to ... I not used to this, so ... but I
realize that I have a husband that works for the Hana Miconia, I'm a mother of five.
They paddle canoe. They play soccer. I have a son that works for the, with Mike--what's
his name? Rick Rutiz. And he's part of building stuff for the kupunas. I mean he really
loves it. He, he's one of those who not ... I don't know, how would you put it? Kolohe.
So that was a really good program for my son. Canoe Club, soccer, volleyball. I mean,
they're involved in all that. Hana Youth Center. Let's see what else. Ohana Makamae,
Hale Hulu Mamo. I have a grandma that goes there. And it, they helped a lot with
burden, like in the family, in helping taking care of her. Programs that helped us with
understanding Alzheimer's and how the family can deal with her aging, and I just ask you
guys to continue supporting all these programs because I came in late, and I was like,
gosh, my kids is all involved in that. It's like my grandma goes there. My godparents is
there for exercise. I mean, just all of, all of the ... Poanimai Park. It's like where our
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kids play. My kids are all, all members of the Hana Youth Center, so MEO buses help
take our kids to canoe races. Like I work. I have weekends off, so I'm lucky. I'm there
at all the games as, if I can make it, but sometimes our buses take our kids out on Fridays,
and I work on Fridays. But we meet them out there, and it is a far drive to Lahaina. And
I think most of the races are in Lahaina, so MEO helps our kids with that. And I think
our kids being involved with all this community stuffs keep them from drugs and, you
know, other stuff like that.
So I just wanted to thank you guys and ask for your support, continued support. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Any other ... anybody else? Ms. Smith. Please come forward and no need rush.
Take your time.
MS. LIND: Good evening, Council Members. Welcome to Hana. It's good to see all this
smiling faces out here. I'm here on behalf for Hale Hulu Mamo, Ohana Makamae and
Hana Ka Ike. They are doing a wonderful job for us kupunas in Hana. You know, now
we know we getting there, you know, in age, and so this is a place for us to be. We can
help them whatever they need us to do, like sitting down doing some things with our
hands, you know. Malia keeps everybody busy and put them in their right mind. And I
thank Malia so much for being here, you know, in the community, Hana community.
And I'd like to thank especially for you folks supporting and giving us what we need in
Hana. And that's not all. I need to ask you one more favor and that favor is, if and when
you get a chance, we need to pave that road right between Youth Center and our Hale
Hulu Mamo because there's so much dust over there and we're always sneezing and
coughing and, you know. But that's for real, that kind, you know. So I'd like to thank
you folks again. There's so much to say, but tonight I cannot think because I see all you
guys. We had dinner together, that's even better. We should do that more often, you
know. Get one happy family. This is what Hana is all about. I thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, questions? Hearing none, good evening.
MS. SMITH: Oh, my name is Caroline Smith.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Smith.
MS. SMITH: This is Malia my daughter. But she becomes my mother. This morning she asked
me, Mom, who put our stove on? I'm the guilty party. I really appreciate staying with
my daughter. I have seven children and she came home to take care of my husband until
he died, and then now I am like the queen of the house. Anyway, I am so blessed. We
are so blessed this evening to have all of you and met you personally. So I thank you so
much for being our ohana and for sharing our food with you and thank you for eating the
food. I hope nobody fall asleep when you go home. But, anyway, thank you for
supporting Ohana Makamae, the Youth Center and Hale Hulu Mamo, and the MEO bus,
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and the Canoe Club. Thank you for your help and thank you for being so gracious to all
of us. We appreciate it very much. Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Smith. Questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Please come. If you can, state your name for the record, and when you pau, we'll
have you sign up right here.
MS. KAHULA: Oh, okay. My name is Shirley Kahula. I'm here to testify for Hale Hulu
Mamo. My husband is a three-time candidate for stroke patient. He just had a hip
replacement, and Hale Hulu Mamo has been really, really helpful for him because of the
massage class that they have for him. It's like more of a therapy that both of us don't
drive, so Hale Hulu Mamo is a ... I can't say anything else because the people up there is
really, really good. And they've been really helpful for me.
And also I would like to testify for the HCHC who's been helpful for my husband.
Diabetic patient. And, of course, I'm a caregiver. Just graduated for being a caregiver
for my husband, and I want to see that more support would go there.
I just got on the Board for the Hana Youth Center, and I've been working, I worked at the
Youth Center for almost 15, 20 years. And I know that our children in Hana really need
place to go besides doing other things, and I'm quite sure you sit there and you heard
everything that the people had testified that our ... We are in Hana. We're always the
last people to have anything because we have to fight and talk and talk, and I know it
takes time. But we always was left out with the good stuff. But I'm here just to say and
thank you people for keep helping and support our kids' programs in Hana, especially the
Canoe Club. Keeping our kids out of trouble from drugs and other things that they take
besides drugs and alcohol. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mrs. Kahula. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Is there anybody else that has not testified that would like to testify? If you can,
please come forward at this time. Is there anybody? If you can, please acknowledge,
otherwise, we going close it up. I don't know if this gentleman ... excuse me, sir, are
you going to testify? Oh, okay. I was waiting. Okay .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, we have no further testimony for this evening. Any comments by the
Members? Questions? Hearing none, Hana, thank you very much. Oh, Member
Tavares, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We're fighting about who's going to thank the seniors for the
wonderful dinner that we had this evening. Thank you for your hospitality and, yes, we
should do it more often, but maybe we can potluck the next one so we can contribute
also. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah, like they say, rna 'ana, yeah. Ma 'ana. Yeah. Thank you very much,
Hana. We really appreciate it, and we will be working towards providing the services
you folks are requesting.
This Budget meeting for March 16, 2005 is
adjourned ... {gavel} . ..
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

7:35 p.m.

Transcribed by: Jan Inouye-Ogata
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